
--

-

-
Af(1~1 
etS P,l)R 

.MEHBERS PRESENT: 

GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

MARCH 12, 1975 

CHAIRMAN DINI 
VICE-CHAIRMAi.'l' MURPHY 
ASSEMBLYMAN CRADDOCK 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARMON 
ASSEi1BLYMAN MAY 
ASSEMBLYMAN MOODY 
ASSEMBLYM.ZU\J SCHOFIELD 
ASSEMBLYMAN FORD 
ASSEMBLYMAN YOUNG 

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. Laurence Hampton, City of Las Vegas 
Mr. Bill Adams, City of Las Vegas 
Mr. Jack Mitchell, City of North Las Vegas 
Mr. Goodwin, State of Nevada 
Mr. Dante Pistone, State of Nevada 
Mr. Robert A. May, Nevada Society of Professional 

Engineers 
Mr. J. N. Littlefield, State Public Works Board 
Mr. Fred Daniels, Professional Engineers Board 
Mr. Jim Lien, Carson City Centennial 
Mr. James W. Calhoun, Carson City Centennial 
Mr. Robert 0. Dimmick, Legislative Counsel Bureau 

(The following bills were discussed at this meeting: Request for bill 
draft to amend industrial revenue bond law; S.B. 219, A.B. 230,A.B. 290~ 
S.B. 210, A.B. 321, A.B. 322, A.J.R. 7, A.B. 199, A.B. 172, A.B. 56.) 

Chairman Dini called t~e meeting to order at 8:05 A.M. 
The secretary called the roll. 

Mr. Pistone stated that he had a request for a bill draft 
to amend the Industrial Revenue Bond law. He stated that it was brought 
to their attention that the revenue bond law does not include ware­
housing and distribution facilities in the law. Mr. Pistone distributed 
a handout to the committee members, a copy of which is attached to the 
minutes of this meeting and made a part hereof. Mr. Pistone stated 
that Nevada is lax in industrial financing. He stated that it is per­
mitted but that it has only been used about three times in the state 
for pollution control devices. Mr. Pistone stated that they feel that 
with the increasing importance of warehousing and distribution in the 
state that if they did provide additional enticement it would encourage 
warehousing and distribution facilities. He stated that the law could 
be used to much greater effectiveness and could be a great asset to the 
state. 

dmayabb
Asm



--

-
-
-

/-
Mr. Pistone stated that they were proposing that 

"warehousing and distribution" be inserted in Section 8 in the 
fourth line. Mr. Pistone stated that warehousing and distribution 
have not been eligible before. Mr. Pistone stated that they will 
only get qualified enterprises corning into the sate. 

Mr. Dini asked if there would be a new subsection. 

Mr. Pistone stated that yes there would be and that 
it would make sure that only qualified agencies are allowed to use 
the amendment. 

Mr. May moved that the bill be drafted and re-referred 
back to the committee. Mr. Murphy seconded the motion. All of the 
committee members were in favor of the motion and it was carried 
unanimously. Mr. Craddock, Mr. Moody and Mr. Harmon were not present 
at the vote. 

The next bill to be discussed by the committee was 
S.B. 219, which authorizes counties to budget for art centers. Mr. 
Jim Lien testified and stated that he was with the Carson City Centennial. 
He stated that S.B. 219 was permissive legislation which would establish 
an art center in Carson City. Mr. Lien stated that permissive language 
allows the city to participate in the funding of such a project. Mr. 
Lien stated that it was an expansion of the law. He stated that they 
have not had any opposition from the other entities, and that Clark 
County was not opposed to this bill. 

Mr. Warren stated that he concurred. 

Mr. Dini stated that the testimony on S.B. 219 was 
concluded. 

Mr. Young made a motion for 
which was seconded by Mr. May. All of the 
the motion and it was carried unanimously. 
and Mr. Moody were not present at the vote. 

a "do pass" on S.B. 219, 
members were in favor of 

Mr. Craddock, Mr. Harmon 

The next bill to be heard by the committee was A.B. 230 
which was introduced by Assemblyman Demers. Mr. Demers stated that 
there were 55 individuals employed by the animal control center in 
Clark County. Mr. Demers indicated that Mr. Bunker had stated that 
Clark County would not oppose this bill and that the Humane Societies 
of Southern and Northern Nevada do support the bill. 

Mr. Dini stated that he had received a great deal of 
correspondence from the small counties and that they would like to be 
let out from under this bill. He stated that the counties had in­
dicated that they had ordinances and that they did not want to change 
it. Mr. Dini stated that the corrm1ittee would go on the assumption that 
it was for Clark County. 

Mr. Demers stated that the problem may be greater in the 
urban areas. 

-2-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



--

-
-

Mr. Dini stated that the City of North Las Vegas 
was opposed to the bill. 

Mr. Demers stated that that did not surpirse him. 

Mr. Dini asked if this bill would prevent dogs from 
running around loose. He stated that it would not and that steriliza­
tion would not prevent that. 

Mr. Demers stated that North Las Vegas had an increase 
of a little over 300% and that the big problem is the fact that these 
dogs are running loose and breeding. He stated that the humane approach 
is to sterilize them. 

Mr. May asked how you would prove possession if people 
would take dogs and just leave them. 

Mr. Demers stated that the animal control people would 
pick up the dog, and take it to the pound. He stated that the animal 
would then be executed, someone would claim the dog or someone would 
adopt the dog. Mr. Demers stated that once an individual comes in, 
that you would then have an effective control. 

Mr. May stated that what we were after was to have them 
sterilized before they are released from the animal control center. 

Mr. Demers stated that he would not be opposed to that. 
He stated that the dog pound people were responsible for this. 

Mr. Dini asked if he thought the wording should be 
"shall" in Clark County. 

Mr. Demers stated that it should be. 

Mr. Dini asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Bill Adams next testified on A.B. 230. Mr. Adams 
stated that he would straddle the fence on this bill. He stated that 
they recognized the problem. He stated there were two faults. The 
first one was the price of $50.00 fine and the difference between 
"may'' and "shall". He stated that the counties have always had 
permissive legislation. 

Mr. Adams stated that in the city the problem is that they 
do not have enough~ people to catch the dogs. 

Mr. Adams stated that their staff in the animal shelter 
was 18 people and that they worked 24 hours a day - 7 days a week and 
that there was one man on each shift. He stated that at the present 
time most people do not prefer to take this type of a job. 

Mr. Adams stated that they are financing their animal 
shelter which will have a sterilization clinic. They have been getting 
static because of the possibility of sterilization of the wrong dogs, 
but that they have facilities available for it. He stated it was their 

-3-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



--

-
-
-

intention to use veterinarians to do the work. Mr. Adams stated that 
he felt that the price would go up from the $35.00 that is currently 
being charged now for sterilization. He stated that the best thing 
to do would be to go ahead and give them the authority and to let them 
see what they can do. 

Mr. Young asked if he said that they thought that they 
could steralize a dog if this is not enacted. 

Mr. Adams stated yes, that they were rewriting the or-
dinance. 

Mrs. Ford asked if his bill will only apply to the city. 

Mr. Adams stated that they will have to get the c~unty to -
do it. He stated that he wanted to do it all the way - county and city. 

Mrs. Ford stated that the Blue Diamond area was particu­
larly bad and that they would be an incorporated area. 

Mr. Schofield asked if that was where the majority of the 
problem was. 

Mr. Adams stated that that is the one that is receiving 
the publicity. Most of the areas are on the other side of the city. 
He mentioned North Curtis park and that area. 

Mrs. Ford stated that it looked like we needed to mandate 
the entities within the Las Vegas Valley and incorporated area to come 
up with a uniform ordinance. If we ask you to get together and come up 
with one that would give you flexibility. 

Mr. Dini asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Young stated that he did not like to see legislation 
on something that is unworkable. 

Mrs. Ford stated that they had the authority and so did 
the Bounty and that we had to tell bhem to get together. 

Mr. Dini asked if there was anyone else that would like 
to testify on A.B. 230. 

Mr. Bob Warren next testified. Mr. Warren stated that he 
had had 14 responses and only one favored the proposal. He stated that 
this could be a serious problem in some areas and that it should be 
tried on an area by area basis. 

Mr. Warren then listed some of the responses he had 
received. He stated that Caliente had no vet there and that there 
would be a problem with sterilization. 

He stated that Gabbs feels that it should be handled by 
local ordinance. 

-4-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



--

-
-
-

Carson stated that they do have the poweJ ~ '~'2;:\Sftis. 

Elko has an ordinance but they feel that it should remain 
within the local purview. 

Henderson and Lovelock oppose it. 

He further stated that Sparks would support it if funds 
were made available for mass sterilization and an educational program 
were offered. 

Mr. Dini asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Bunker next testified. He stated that he had received 
input from the animal control people and that they felt it was a county 
problem. He further stated that the initial cost certainly would increasE 
in fulfilling this program. He stated that he felt that after two years 
the cost would level off and that they bascially supported the bill. 
One of their concerns was the call back. 

Mr. Dini questioned this bill with regard to counties 
over 200,000 people and that for the rest of the counties it would 
be permissive. 

, 1• Mr. Bunker stated that he would defer to the committee. 

Mr. May asked Mr. Bunker if he had authority with regard 
to the $50.00 on the county level and Mr. Bunker stated that he did not 
know if that authority is in the county ordinances or not. 

Mr. Schofield stated that if the counties had the authori~ 
to pass ordinances allowing these law why should we do it. Mr. Bunker 
stated that he had not initiated the legislation. 

The next bills to be discussed were S.B. 210 and A.B. 
290. Mr. Adams, director of the Nevada Society of Professional Engin­
eers testified. He stated that these bills were introduced at their 
request. Mr. Adams stated that they were the major professional 
organization of engineers in the county and that their membership totaled 
60,000. He stated that the state has adopted in addition to the regula­
tions, a code of conduct. In the past a number of engineers have been 
removed from the society and have had their licenses removed. He 
stated that they felt it was appropriate that they do this. Mr. Adams 
stated that for some reason the board was not given the authority to 
use the code of conduct against the engineers, and that they wanted 
this in the statutes. Mr. Adams stated that it is aimed at cleaning 
up the profession. 

Mr. Dini asked if he was representing Senator Gibson. 

Mr. Adams replied that he more or less was. 

Mr. Dini asked if there was any provision in the code 
of conduct stating that the engineers could wear two hats - one,rep­
resenting a client and t~e other representing the board. 

-5-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



-­• 

-
-
-

,- 0396 

Mr. Adams stated that once an engineer has stated that he is 
representing a client, he should remain with the client. Mr. Dini 
indicated that he had seen one that had represented both and that 
if it is not specifically in the code of conduct, that he felt it 
should be amended. Mr. Dini asked if he would have an objection to 
doing this. 

Mr. Adams stated that he felt that the code of conduct would 
cover this. 

Mrs. Ford stated that under the NRS it allows the majority 
of the membership to amend the code. She asked Mr. Adams if the 
board could make amendments on its own. 

Mr. Adams stated that the board would institute a change 
in the code and they would send it to each engineer and then the engin­
eers would vote for or against it. Mr. Adams then referred to section 
3.7 of the code and read from that section. He stated that in essence 
this section states that an engineer will not accept compensazion 
from more than one party without the knowledge and consent of both 
parties. 

Mr. Fred Danies of the Professional Engineers registration 
Board stated that the code was ratified by all people who were regis­
tered by their board several years ago. He stated that to make a change 
they would have to go back through all of the people. He further 
stated that the board wants this code. 

Mr. Dini asked if the board would mind a little amendment. 

Mr. Daniels asked if this was a conflict of interest situation 
that Mr. Dini had referred to. 

Mr. Dini said that it was and he further thought that it 
should be specified in the law. 

Mr. Young indicated that in small areas there may not be 
enough engineers. 

Mr. Dini stated that they should not be able to represent 
both parties. 

Mr. Daniels stated that under the code the engineer has the 
responsibility not to be in that position. 

Mr. Dini indicated that the statute could be changed. 

Mr. May stated that the initial code is to be ratified by 
a majority and thereafter it may be promulgated or adopted. He stated 
that it was vague. 

Mr. Dini asked if there were any questions. 

The next bill to be discussed was A.B. 290. Mr. Richard Arden 
spoke on behalf of the bill. Mr. Arden is the president elect of the 

Nevada society of professional engineers. 

-6-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



--

-
-
-

I _ 0397 

Mr. Arden stated that the engineering profession has given 
considerable consideration to the amendment in order to clarify 
certain understandings that might exist in the selection of an engineer. 
There has been a trend in the past to bidding engineering and archi­
tectural services. They do not feel that this is in the best interests 
of the public health, safety and welfare for the following reasons. 
The public agency will not obtain the best qualified firm to undertake 
the project. As a matter of fact, the least qualified probably 
would have the lowest fee because they would not completely understand 
the scope of work. The public agency would have to obtain additional 
personnel to check the work and they will not be able to rely on the 
reputation of the firm and the qualify of the work and probably and 
most importantly would be that the agency would not receive the most 
economical eesign because the firm will not have the fee to study the 
alternatives to determine the most economical design. To protect the 
firm from the lack of fee, the project will be over-designed which 
will be reflected in a higher construction cost. From the public stand­
point, the careful evaluation of an engineer or architect's services 
is more important that price alone. It is difficult, if not impossible, 
to determine the scope of the work for the engineer to hid. The en­
gineer has to act in an advisory capacity to the client and to help 
him define the scope of work so that an effecient, safe and economical 
project can be designed. A relationship must be developed in such a 
manner to insure one of mutual trust and confidence. This cannot be 
accomplished through a bidding process. There has been much publicity 
in the past concerning the selection of engineers in Maryland, which 
resulted in an editorial in the Washington Post in December of 1974 
which clearly points out the opposition to competitive bidding of 
engineering services. The post said "engineering and architectural 
services for talent, experience and other intangibles cannot be 
measured in dollars. The lowest bidding designer in fact is quite 
apt to give us a prohibitively expensive product, a building that 
is deficient, a bridge that needs constant repairs or a freeway that 
causes accidents''. The Post also called for the professional 
societies to police their own ethics and that is what we are trying 
to do here in S.B. 210. The Post editorial sums up the reason for the 
passage of this amendment. Several governmental agencies are presently 
using this method, however, in certain areas where there is a change 
in administration, they feel that it should be specifically spelled 
out. 

Mr. Craddock asked what control was exercised over out of 
state engineers. 

Mr. Arden stated that the only control is through the State 
Board of Registration and any engineer that comes into the state has 
to obtain a license from the Board in order to practice in this 
state. If they are operating in the state according to the state law 
they must maintain a residence and a place of business here. 

Mr. Craddock asked how long that had been effective. 

Mr. Daniels stated between 4 to 6 years. He was not sure 
of the date. Mr. Daniels further stated that there have been no 
problems as far as kickbacks. He stated that this bill concerns 
public works and the selection of an engineer to perform those public 
works. It is in the best interest of the public in order to get a 
properly designed job to go through the selection process that is being 
used by the state public works board. 

-7-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



-
-
-

1~ 03:9Ji 

Mr. Dini stated that the key words are "basis" and demonstra-
tion". 

Mr. Arden stated that you would be able to review the particu~ 
lar engineer and his firm as to what his capabilities are. 

Mr. May then referred to the words demonstrate and shall in 
the bill. 

Mr. Arden stated that under private enterprise we :still use 
the same system and it would be a little different with private enter­
prise because you can specifically point out to them the advantages 
of selecting a competent person to save their money. These people 
are generally dealing in these type of projects all the time and they 
understand. 

Mr. May asked if this would preclude any newly licensed 
architects? 

Mr. Arden stated that if it is a new firm they would have 
staff with past expierence. 

Mr. Joe Littlefield, Deputy Manager of the State Public Works 
Board next testified. He stated that Mr. Hancock is at another hearing 
and he has asked him to testify in his place and to report to the 
committee. The Public Works Board does employ this method to secure 
its architects and engineers. They believe it is the proper method 
in all public works projects and they would recommend that the committee 
do it. What we are looking at here is not a question of avoiding 
an under the table agreement, we are looking at the necessity and a 
means of assuring that you get the most competent engineer. The reason­
ing behind this is that if you bi~ the services at the time when you 
select the architect and engineer, the project has not yet been defined. 
If you select the architect or engineer on the basis of bidding 
you are almost guaranteeing yourself that you will select the outfit 
that is willing to spend the least amount of time on it. In engineering 
work, the design is a small part of the total cost. An error on the 
design could be costly. This always has been the method that the Pub­
lic works board has employed in selecting engineers. 

Mr. Craddock asked if he felt that there should be a penalty 
for an incompetent engineer. 

Mr. Littlefield stated that there is liability. There is 
no necessity in this particular law. This is just the manner of selec­
tion. 

Mr. Jack Mitchell next testified. Mr. Mitchell stated that 
he was a registered engineer in the State of Nevada. He stated that 
he thought it would be a sad situation if a building were designed by 
the low bidder. The better consultant will almost always save you 
the entire fee over what you get from the low bidder. Mr. Daniels 
then referred to Section 2(a) of the code of conduct and stated that 
they could take disciplinary action for a conflict of interest when 
they know about it. 

Mr. Dini asked if this had ever been done in Western Nevada. 

-8-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



-
-
-

' 

/-0399 
Mr. Daniels stated yes. 

on the board, no. 
In the one year that he has been 

Mr. May, with regard to A.B. 290, questioned Mr. Daniels 
would consider changing the word shall and striking the word 
demonstrate. He stated that those two changes would allow them that 
privilege and would not preclude any new business. 

Mr. Daniels stated that the word shall should be there. What 
they were trying to do was to protect public safety. 

The committee then took a five minute recess. 

Chairman Dini called the meeting back to order. 

Mr. May moved for an indefinite postponement with regard to 
A.B. 230 which was seconded by Mr. Craddock. Mrs. Ford suggested 
that we try to do something else on this bill. 

Mr. Dini stated that Mrs. Ford and Mr. Schofield were to work 
on this and to bring back something for committee introduction if 
possible. All of the committee members were unanimously in favor of 
the motion and it was unanimously carried. 

Mr. Young moved for a "do pass" on S.B. 210~ which was 
seconded by Mr. Moody. All of the committee members were in favor 
of the motion and it was unanimously carried. 

Mr. Moody moved for a "do pass" on A.B. 290 which was 
seconded by Mrs. Ford. The committee then discussed A.B. 290. A motion 
vor an "amend and do pass" was made by Mr. May and was seconded by 
Mr. Moody. The proposed amendment was in line 21 of the bill. The 
word shall will be changed to may and to delete the word "demonstrate" 
on line 22. 

Mrs. Ford stated that she strongly opposes the amendment from 
"shall" to "may". She suggest removing the word demonstrate. 

Mr. Murphy then referred to the verbiage in the statutes and 
read from the statutes. All of the committee members were in favor 
of the amend and do pass with regard to A-B- 290 with the exception of 
Assemblyman Ford. The motion was carried unanimously. 

Mr. Dini then referred to A.B. 321 and stated that the State 
Employees have agreed to take out Section 7. Mr. Dini stated that we 
would hold on to A.B. 321 and get in touch with Mr. Gagnier on this 
bill. 

Mr. Dini then referred to A.B. 322. He stated that an 
amendment had been proposed by Mr. Bruce. The amendment to this bill 
will read "the procedures necessary to accomplish such payroll 
deductions as specified by the claiming shall be established by the 
State Controller. 

Mr. May moved an amend and do pass with regard to A.B. 322, 
wbich was seconded by Mr. Cxaddock. All of the members were in favor 
of the amend and do pass and the motion was unanimously carried. 

-9-

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



--

-
-
-

./ ~-
( 

Ol!OO 

Mr. Dini stated that .~.J.R. 7 poses a lot of problems if we 
were to send it back to Congress. The committee then discussed A.B. 
199. Mr. May made a motion to amend and do pass A.B. 19g, effective 
the day that Congress changes veteran's day back. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Murphy. Mr. Murphy stated that A.B. 199 would be tied 
in to the day that Congress returns Veteran's Day to November 11th. 
All of the committee members were in favor of the motion and it was 
unanimously carried. 

Mr. May then moved for an indefinite postponment of A.J.R. 7 
which was seconded by Mr. Craddock. All of the committee members were 
in favor of the motion for indefinite postponerrent with regard to 
AJR 7 and it was carried unanimously. 

Mr. May then stated that the subcommittee had met with Mr. 
Hancock with regard to A.B. 172. Mr. Hancock suggested that we revise 
it by amending section 2, line 8 and by saying that the Board shall adopt 
regulations by establishing procedures acceptable to the state 
contractor's board. Mr. Dini stated that Mr. May would get the amend­
ment drafted and bring it back to the committee. 

Mr. Dini then asked if Mr. Warren had an amendment with regard 
to A.B. 56. Mr. May stated that he had talked to Mr; Hancock and that 
Mr. Hanock had discussed it with the fire marshal. Mr. Hancock suggested 
that Mr. May suggest the following language in 3(b). 

"At their own cost conduct factory built inspections to 
verify compliance with all provisions of NRS 461.170 

Mr. May stated that he would get back to the committee with 
regard to A.B. 56. 

There being no further business to come before the meeting, 
the meeting adjourned. 

-10-

Respectfully submitted, 

~h- -
!Barbara G:m~ 
Committee Secretary 

dmayabb
ga

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 12, 1975



-

• ~EMBLY • 

A GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS 
GENOA FOR COMMITTEE ON ................................................................... . 

WEDNESDAY, 
Date .. MARC.li ... l2.i .... l9.7.5. ....... Ttme .... S.;.Q.Q ... A~.!1.~ ... Room ..... 2.t4 .............. . 

Bills or Resolutions 
to be considered Subject 

A.B. 230 

S.B. 219 

S.B. 210 

A.B. 290 

Authorizes counties and requires cities 
and towns to enact an ordinance to con­
trol dogs running at large. 

Notify: Mr. Demers 
Mr. Broadbent 
Mr. Bunker 
Mr. Warren 

* * * * * * 

Authorizes counties to budget for art 
centers. 

Notify: Senator Gibson 
Mr. Broadbent 
Mr. Bunker 

* * * * * * 

Provides additional ground for revoking 
certificate of registration of pro­
fessional engineer or land surveyor. 

Notify: Senator Gibson 
State Board of Professional 

Engineers (Director) 

* * * * * * 

Provides method for selection of re.gistered 
professional engineer or licensed architect 
for public works projects. 

Notify: Dr. Robinson 
Mr. Hancock, Public Works Board 

~Please do not ask for counsel unless necessary. 

J- 039,0 

Counsel 
requested• 

7421 ~ 



--
DATE: !NltA/4 I,)_ ( I 11 j 

NAME 

" . '. ' \ 
( ·.'.\ "• I ' \ . ,"J ""-._ f\.}.__,, ' ' 

GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMIT.EE 

GUEST REGISTER 

BILL i 

X 

REPRESENTING 

C 

.:~~. ~ ~ 
IJ~~.~~ 

TESTIFYING 

Y£S 

·000 

1-,jo 

ND 



--

-
-
-

' 

Scnnto Bill No. 170--Scna~, Alleman 

CHAl'TEH.i£".f:::7 
AN ACT rd11ti11g to public securities and obligations; aulhorizinl: counties and 

cities lo issue revenue bonds to linuncc industrial development projects and to 
lease such projects; l)rcscrihing details in connection therewith; and providing 
other matters proper y relating thereto. • 

The People! of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, 
clo enact as fallows: 

SECTION l. Chapter 244 of N RS is hereby amended by adding 
thereto the provisions set forth. as sections 2 Lo 28, inclusive, o( this act. 

SEC. 2. Sections 2 to 28, inclusive, of t!,is act may be cited as the 
Co1111ty Eco110111ic J)cve/q111w11t Revenue /Jund Law. 

SEC. 3. Whenever used i11 se(.'ti011s 2 to 28, inclusive, of this act, 
1111k.1·s a di1lcre11t 111em1i11N clearly appears from tl,e context, -tlie follow­
illN wor,ls and terms clcfi11cd i11 ,tccti011.1· 4 to 7, iru.:lusivc, of tl,is act 
lun.·1~ tl,c mc1111i11i;.1· ascribed to them i11 section,· 4 to 7, inclusive, of this 
act. 

SEC. 4. "Hoard" means the board of county commissioners. 
SEC. ~. "/1011d.1·" or "revenue bo11ds" mean.~ bonds, notes or other 

sec11ritie,f l'Vidcm·,:111; m1 o/Jliglllion and issued under ,vections 2 to 28, 
i11c:/11.1'ivc, of this al'I. 

SEC. (,. "l\,fortgage" i11cl11des a tlcl'<l of trust and a11y otlwr security 
device for hot/1 rl'al a11tl paso11al /Jf'0[1Crty. 

Snc. 7. "l'roicct" 1111 1<111.1· any· land, huildi11,: or other improvement• 
a11d all real and fJN,1·0,111/ profll'l'lics 11eccs.w1ry in cmmection therewith, 
wl,ctl,cr m· 1101 in l'Xist1·11c,•, Miitahk for mm111facluri11,:, industrial or 
re.1·1·111·d1 and devl'!op111,•11f ,·111,,r1iri·s1·s. · 

~ Sl'.C. 8. I. It is tlw i11tc11( of the fcgisl<iture to mrtltorlze counties to 

( 

· a1·1111irc, Oll'fl, /,•11.1·1", im11rov1• an,/ dispo,1·c of 111·01n'flil'.1· to tlte 1111</ that 
,l'lld1 c:1111111i,•,1· 11wy hi' ah/,• to 11rom11te imlwtry m1</ ,kvl'lov trade by 
i111ltll'i11g 111,m11/ai'1111·i11g, i111/11st1i11l and r,•scarch and dc11d111111w111 clller­
{Jf'ise.1· to /ontt,• ill or f'l'/1111111 in tliis ,1·/11/1•, in ordl'f• to 11.1·,)i.l'I in rdicl'ing the 
,\'l'l'iflll,\' t/1/'1'11I of <'.\'(t'/1.\'i\!C /IIIClfl/,,Joy11W1tt ill /JOI'(,\' of l/1i.i• S(Ol<', ill ,W'(.'t.tr/llg 
a11d ')1tai11t11i11i11g " halmu:!'d mu/ stal1fe cco1w111y i11 ir/l JIOl'/,1· of tlli,1· state 
a11d in f 11rlltt'l'i11g 1/,,• 11.1·1• of it,1· ctgric11/t11ral Jll'Od11<·t.1· mul rwturol rcsource,1·. 
It i.1·, tllt'rcf,1r,·, tlrr• i11t,·11lio11 of the l<'gis/111111·e to 1·,•.1'/ ,wu:/1 ,:01111tie,1· with 
all /-'< 111 11'/',1' 1/,111 111ay h,• m·c1·s.w11y lo ,•1111/1/e tlwn. /11 ac,·0111J1lislt ,\'Ud1 1111r-
110,1·, ·s, wlticlt /llllt't'l'.V .\'hill/ i11 all t'<',l'/'•'l.'/.1· be <'.u'rr:i,1'1'1[ for tlw h,•i1<•/it of 
rli1• i11fwbilm11s of this stall' for ti,,• 11ro111otio11 of thl'ir .wf,•ty, wl'lfar<', 
l'f/11 \!t'flit'II< 't' tlf/1/ /1/'0,\'/lt'f'I(.\', 

:!. It is 1101 i11t,·11clccl lt,·,d,y tlt(I/ 1111y co11111y shall itsl'lf /,,: autlwrizNJ 
to O/lt'l'(l/e 1111y ,1·11ch 111m111f,u:t,ui11g, irrd11stri11/ o,· re.1·,·arcl, and devdop-
111c11/ c11tcr111·ise. · 

3. No <'01111/y may hy virtue of ,Icctiun.1· 2 lo 28, indusive, of thi.f act 
11.1·,1·ist a11y ma1111fm:t11ri11g, i11d11.1tl'ictl or rc,,·cm·ch and devl!/opmelll cnter­
pri,,·t' to lo, ·at,· i11 the co11nty which, would off a s11hstm1tial competition to 
a11 1',l'isti11g 1•11f1•r111'i.1·11 within th<' <'ot/1/f.V w/10.1·<· i11tmstotc market.~ are sub., 
,1·t,111tit1/ly the ,wim1•. 

I -

' 
I 

A-6131 

0402 

I 
' I 



•· 
l 
I 

.\ 
X -·· '. 

-
·-

I 
I 
; 
I 

r • 

/- 0403 

BNDUSTRBAIL fllPJAB\JC§NG FACTS 

Alabama 
Alaska 
Arizona• 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 

1 
¥ • Q. 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
Va 

... .. 
"I:, 
C 
0 
ID •c to 

C ;; ., .. 
0 .2' 
,. :ii 
mo 
Yest 
No 
No 
Yes 
No 
No 

-:;; .,, 
C 
D 

ID 

• :, 
C 

i· 
a: 
> 

.. 
C 
u 
C .. 
C - "' A&. -.. 
-go 

D 0 
mt-

a 
C u 
C .. 
C 

ii:~ • 
c, C o, 
- ., Q, 

~.'l ~ 
ID $ Millions 
Yes 860.0- No 
Yes Yes. A,8 

. Yes .... Yes A 
Yes ·750,0 No 
No ,No 
Yes 26.7 Na4 • 

Yes Yes Yes · 9.0 Yes AP 

$ Millions 

,76 

Open· 

.30 

Vatla 

5.0 Delawarw 
Florida 

Yes Yes Yes 100.0 Yes D 
Yes A Yes No Yes A 

Georgia' 
Hawaii 
Idaho 

· 1111no1t 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Loulsl­
M.IIIM 

Maryland" 
Mas.s:ic:h~ 
Michigan 
Minne,ota 
M isslsslppl 
Missouri 
Montana 
Nebraska 
Nenda1 

N- Hampshire, 
N-Jersev 
N-Mexlco · 
N-York 

North Carolina 
North Dakota 

Ohio' 
Oklahoma 
Oregon• 
Pennsylvania 

Rhode Island 

South Carolina 
South Dakota 
T.,,,,_ 
Teus 
Utah 
Vermont• 
Virginia 

Washington 
We,t Virginia 
Wisconsin 
Wyoming' 

Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Yes" 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

No 
Yes 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
Yes• 
Yes 
No 

Yes' 
No 
No 
No 
Yes 
Yes" 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 

No 
Yes 

No 
Yes 
Yes 
No 

No 

No 
No 
Yes"' 
No 
No 
No 
No 

Yes 
No 
Yes 
No 

Yes 
•Yes 
No 
ves• 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

243 
281.4 
677.6 
379.0 
6.3 

No 
Yes B 
No 
Yes 
Yes C,D 
Yes A 
Yes A 
Yes B 
Yes A 
Yes C.D 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

• 20.97 
33.0 
316.0 
76.9 

Yes A,C 
Yes A,B 
No .,.. 
Yes A"' 
Yes A 
No 
Yes'A 
No A 

Yes•• 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 
VIII 

Yes 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
.No 

Yes 

Yes 
Ye! 
Ye1•• 
Yes 
Yts 
Yet 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

412.0 
267.0 
16.0 
142.4 

1.6 

25.6 
65.~ 

Yes A,B 
Yes B0 

No 
Va A.B,0-

25 
14.1 

365 
334 

No 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Ye1 

231,6 No 
14.3 No 
425 Yes 

Yes 
5 No 

Yes 
173 Yes 

C 
B 
A11,C11 

A,B.011 

A,C 

B,C 
A.B 

A.B,C 
A 

No 
129.7 Yes B 
1.0 No 
55.0 Yes A 

.05 

C:1,0 
5.0 
.25 

4.0 

4.0 
5.0 

6.0 

Open 

5.0 
Open 

A:0.5 
8:1.0 
O:No Limit 

6 
1 

6 

Varlel 

_0.5 

No Limit 

No Limit 

C0,NOT•: THC COMPt.P.Jl l'fATU"II: 01" 

tNOU'T"'"'" .. ,NJlHCfHO '" o,..- .. 1cu1.T 
TO PfU!,l".NT IN TA • ULA" P'O"Ml ,. •• 
91J1..T• MAY .... Vil ONI.Y .... "" ov•"· 
,tlLI.. .,, •• ()ff" ,,.oG" AMI, WtTH o•• 
TAtl.• TO •t P'tU .. t:D IN •· ltAT• 
DaV•.LOPM ... T AO&NCta•. 

J. DATA NOT AVAILAbL& .. o .. tt7J, 

0,11,TA "'"~ "OH t't1t, 
.a, THIE COLORADO IIU91Hlt99 OCVEI,.• 
OP'MCHT co ....... " ""'VATtl a .. ou ... 
""ov10•1 ,,,NANC:INO , .. COL,0.JO"T" 
A•& ~O"THATO"OU~ -

•• ~ONN&CTfCUT Oa:Vll!:t,.0Pfr•41lNT COM• 
MISSt0NJl'0,-tlNl•Ta"S AICVaNU• • ONO 
A,mMOJITOAOa OUA"ANTY P"OO"AMI. 
·• TH& (+} ... ,,,. •• l!tNT9 NO L1Mt1' 
UNOC" THa flSVltNUI!: • ONO r"O­
•t1AM ••L"'••U'!ITAININO Po"TtONo 

~ .. c., STAT• acONOMIC D • Va .. • 
0 .. M ... T "GIENCtaS, ·ff••· Ofl' P'IHAHCfNtlt 

a-ocv•t.o,.Ml!NT CWCDrt' 
C"•'"O••Tt0" .,_.,....,. .,l',... • .. T AYT1'10tttT'P 

..,._,l04 ......... --•-!I•"'' ,..._ ... ••..:-• 
Jo fltV.NU. •PNQ P'INANCtNO AU• 
,....C'fltl•"t af"Ta 1• "" ,tTtNO GOll .. 'f' 
,.., ,ii' ,.,. .. ltllrl-""• ,' 

" 
90 

100 

100 

A:100. 

?iQ,0-100 

Varin 

,o 

C:90 
100 
100 

• 
Varies 

~ 

:'100 

100 

100 

100 
5 

A:No Limit 
8:30 
O:No Limit 

A:100 
O:Variel 
90 
25 
100 

.:! .. _ 
C: .. .. - ~ Ca,, .. -t~ 
:, -(J 0 

7 

10 Max. 

3 Over 
Prime 
A:9½-10 
O:~arilll 
Vanes 
4 Over 
Prime 

.5.5 

C:½-2 
6-9 
Varies 
8 

2 Over 
Prime 
6-6.5 
Vari-• 

Varlal 

A:2.5 Over 
Prime 
B:6.5 
D:Varies 

O:Vari. 

Varies 
7 

.!':! ., 
_o 
Oo ..... .. .. 
.0 C 
E D 
:, ;: 

;z u 
- ::I 1" C ..... 
0 ~ .... 
52 

336 

28 

337 

30 
110 

158 

50 
201 
61 

60 

3 
12 

-46 

97 

85 
8 

A:437 
B:528 
D:22. 

A:3 

3 
132 

... 
~ _o 

Oo .. ... 
C _, 
:, C 
D 0 

J ti 
-::I 
:l C 

:?.~ 
$ Milllo111 $ Million• $ Mmi-

9.8 18.0· 

750 

2.6 

65.7 

l4.5 

243 
13.6 
6.74 

44.7 

2.1 
33 

142.4 

8.9 
0.9 

A:80.5 
B:69.8 
D:65,3 

A:0.8 

0.5 
18.5 

67.7 ... 

·1.2 

3.6 

C:10 

14.1 
5.3 

80 

12.1 

38 

A:22.9 
8:150 

A:1,1 

5 
20 

112+' 

10 
2 

Nona 

6 
0.7 

35.3 

10 

31 

A:14.5 
B:100 

5 
3,7 

100 

90 

Varies 

1 Over 
Prime 

B:819 
0:1,158 
106 

B:931 
0:276 
37,8 40 2.2 

50 
100 

1 100 

30 

Varies 

1.5 • 2.0 
Over Prime 

5.511 

Varies 

62 

80 
2 
18 

"llAL 11:~TATf! ANO,_, 0,.. MACHtNa• "y ANO 1!:QUl~MIENT. 
10, AUTHOHIZaD •uT INACT1v•. 
11. &JC.CLUD&I MAN9-"'S CITY ANO 

ST. LOUIS 
11, INCLUOl!t: tcANaAI CtTY AND 

11', LOUIi 
0, AMl!'!A ftC0.Vlll:L0,OM.H'T' AU,l'ff0"""' 
ITV IWINANCtNo P&AMITT&O '" aoMa 
COUNTI«•. 
I•, Dt LDC AL 1NDU9Tfl1AL,. DaV&L,.OP­
M aNT AGF.:NCICS, 
U, DI rA .. TtctrATfON L,.OAN•,; .,., ... 
OP' Nff .. TH IU,M01'A, · 
t•, rn"" t.1t•r•1r.T• nNt.'I, 
,_,. J.!ll!!rl'_Jl __ !_'I,. !!:\'_'I, ••• , ., .. 

14.6 

70 
1.0 
3.5 

8.8 

6.6 

8.0 

:.. 

2.5 

2.1 

7.5 

O1[Vl[LO"M«NT IIOAHD11 MAY' 1'1,:Ult 
... v~NU• AND o•Hl!,.AL o•Lt0A.Tl0 ... 
• ONOS WITH APr,.oV At. O_. LOCAL. 
GOVtUtNINO • ODIi!~ ANO "ca,.T1rt .. 
CATR. 0,, PUeuc NaC .. 9S1TY P'IIIOM 
TMK STJ\Ta IIIJII..DtNl'I P'fNAMC& COM• 
"'ITT1:a. 

aa. "aSP0Ns1•tLITY 19 va,'f•o IN 
PUIIL,c P'OltT AUTMOlltf?•• .,.,,.,.. •• 

"'""" couNn••· 
21, "ATC Of' r.ac" TltaN•4C1'tOH ,, 
a•T~ltMfH9'D •• a • v • r....,.....,•~.- .,,,. 
'THO"'l'T1' •?1' •t:.• 
111 -~ ....... .., ........... ~ ......... \-4"' 

• ....... <-~• .. 
. -. ---- --- ......... ~ ... 

>jJ 

;J 

:~ 

: i : ' 



--

-
-
-

"A bond of high enough rating for national banks 
to purchase with permission of the comptroller of the 
currency. " 




